

TOWN OF DOVER MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN

CAUCUS MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 8, 2018 7:00 PM

The Caucus Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen was held in council chambers, 37 N. Sussex Street, Dover, New Jersey.

Mayor Dodd called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

Present: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho and Mayor Dodd Absent: Alderwoman Romaine

Also present were Administrator Donald Travisano, Town Attorney Jarrid Kantor and Municipal Clerk Tara Pettoni.

Municipal Clerk Tara Pettoni stated adequate notice was given to the official newspaper.

SUNSHINE LAW STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions set forth in the Open Public Meeting Law, notification of this meeting has been sent to all officially designated Town newspapers and notice is posted in the Town Hall.

MUNICIPAL CORRESPONDENCE:

- 1. Received from NJ League of Municipalities—Weekly Update—October 26, 2018
- 2. Received from NJ League of Municipalities—Weekly Update—November 2, 2018
- 3. Received from the NJDEP—Weekly Update—October 26, 2018
- 4. Received from the NJDEP—Weekly Update—November 2, 2018
- 5. Received from the NJDEP—Re: Grant Opportunity—Radon Action Month
- 6. Received from Anne Korpita—Re: Premises located at 4 W. Blackwell Street

CONSENT AGENDA

- 1. Resolution Approving a Transfer Resolution
- 2. Resolution Approving Raffle/Bingo Licenses—Holy Rosary
- 3. Resolution Approving a Social Affair Permit (#1) for Sunset NJ (Monchy's Colombian Grill)
- 4. Resolution Authorizing a Contract with Randolph Twp. for Police Outside Services

ORDINANCE(S) FOR FIRST READING

- 1. Ordinance No. 15-2018 Amending & Supplementing Chapter II of the Code of the Town of Dover Entitled, "Administration of Government"—Alderman Visioli
- Ordinance No. 16-2018—Establishing an Electric and/or a Natural Gas Aggregation Program—Alderman O'Connor
- Ordinance No. 17-2018—Amending & Supplementing Chapter 72 Entitled, "Salaries & Compensation"— Alderman Visioli

RESOLUTIONS

- 1. Resolution Approving Bills List
- 2. Resolution Approving the Minutes for the October 23, 2018 Caucus and Regular
- 3. Resolution Authorizing a Chapter 159 Budget Amendment for a Special Item of Revenue
- 4. Resolution Approving Personnel Action
- 5. Resolution Authorizing the Conveyance of Trust Funds to Morris Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
- 6. Resolution Authorizing an Emergency Appropriation
- 7. Resolution Authorizing the Town of Dover to Accept, Enter Into and Administer Funds Associated with Municipal Alliance

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 8, 2018

The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen was held in council chambers, 37 N. Sussex Street, Dover, New Jersey.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Dodd at 7:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

Present: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho and Mayor Dodd Absent: Alderwoman Romaine

Also present were Administrator Donald Travisano, Town Attorney Jarrid Kantor and Municipal Clerk Tara Pettoni.

Municipal Clerk Tara Pettoni stated adequate notice was given to the official newspaper.

Mayor Dodd opened the meeting to the public on any agenda items.

Judy Rugg—28 Audrey Place, Dover—Ms. Rugg spoke about the Shared Service Agreement for Health Services with the Township of Mount Olive. She expressed her frustration regarding the adoption of the agreement.

Sandra Scarneo—66 First Street—Ms. Scarneo expressed her frustration with the Board of Health. She also mentioned that the Board is short 2 members.

CONSENT AGENDA:

TRANSFER RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, there appears to be insufficient funds in the following accounts (excepting the Appropriation of Contingent Expenses or Deferred Charges) to meet the demands thereon for the balance of the year, viz: 2018

NJEIT Prin & Int	Legal OE	Tax Collection OE	Mayor & Board OE
Streets & Roads OE	PB & G OE	Sewer OE	Tax Assessment S & W
Municipal Court S & W			Municipal Prosecutor S & W

WHEREAS, there appears to be a surplus in the following accounts (excepting the Appropriation for Contingent Expenses, Down Payments and Capital Improvement Fund) over and above the demand necessary for the balance of the year, viz: 2018

Water OE	Construction S & W	Town Clerk S & W
OEM OE	Recreation S & W	Health S & W
Streets & Doods S & W		

Streets & Roads S & W

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover (not less than two thirds of all members thereof affirmatively concurring) that in accordance with the provision of R.S. 40A:4-58, part of the surplus in the accounts heretofore mentioned be and the same are hereby transferred to the account (excepting the Appropriation for Contingent Expenses or Deferred Charges) mentioned as being sufficient to meet the current demands; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Treasurer be and she is hereby authorized to make the following transfers:

FROM TO

Water OE	3,060.00	NJEIT Principal & Interest	3,060.00
Construction S & W	24,026.00	Legal Fees OE	30,000.00
Town Clerk S & W	10,500.00	Tax Collection OE	1,000.00
OEM OE	5,800.00	Mayor & Board OE	20,000.00
Recreation S & W	12,500.00	Streets & Road OE	7,500.00
Health S & W	8,000.00	Public Bldgs & Grds OE	5,000.00
Streets S & W	15,000.00	Sewer OE	4,500.00
		Tax Assessment S & W	500.00
		Municipal Court S & W	5,000.00
		Municipal Prosecutor S & W	2,326.00
	78,886.00		78,886.00

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER APPROVING A RAFFLE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the below listed organization has applied for a Raffle/Bingo License; and

WHEREAS, such license has been reviewed by the appropriate departments and found to meet with all of the requirements and conditions of the municipality;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey as follows:

The below listed raffles for the date set forth following their names are hereby approved:

Schedule A

Our Lady Oueen of the Most Holy Rosary

To be held December 23, 2018 (50/50 Raffle Off-Premise) RL #1079

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY APPROVING A SOCIAL AFFAIR PERMIT

WHEREAS, Sunset NJ, filed an application for their **first** Special Permits for Social Affairs to be held at Monchy's Colombian Grill, 19 Bassett Highway; and

WHEREAS, Sunset NJ, a non-profit organization is permitted to have twenty-five events per year; and

WHEREAS, the Police Chief will determine what special conditions if any are needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey that the following applications for Alcoholic Beverage Social Affair Permit(s) be approved:

- 1. Sunset, NJ, is approved for a fund raising event (#1) to be held on Saturday, November 17, 2018 from 8:00 pm through 1:45 am.
- 2. This approval is conditioned upon security satisfactory to the Town of Dover Chief of Police being in place for this event.

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER,
COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH RANDOLPH
TOWNSHIP FOR POLICE OUTSIDE SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover Water Commission must make repairs to water services located in Randolph Township; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to retain off-duty Randolph Township Police Officers to make these repairs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris, State of New Jersey that the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign an agreement with the Township of Randolph for the use of off-duty Police Officers.

Alderman Picciallo has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman O'Connor passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

ORDINANCE(S) FOR FIRST READING:

ORDINANCE NO. 15-2018 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING THE TOWN CODE, CHAPTER 2

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen made a recommendation to amend the language of the Town Code Chapter 2; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to §2-11(A)(2) the Mayor appointed a special committee of three members of the Board of Aldermen (the "Committee") to consider the proposed amendments and submit other suggested changes, if any; and

WHEREAS, the Committee sought the advice of the Town Attorney to review the Code and make recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Committee reviewed, commented and approved any amendments and suggested changes; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen hereby finds and declares that it is in the best interest of the Town of Dover and its residents to amend the language of the Town Code Chapter 2 and adopt the amendments to same.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris, and State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION 1.

Township Code §2 is hereby repealed and replaced in its entirety as follows:

§ 2-1. Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter and in the interpretation and application of all other ordinances and resolutions heretofore or hereafter adopted by the Town, except as the context may otherwise require, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ADMINISTRATOR — The Business Administrator of the Town of Dover.

CHARTER OR TOWN CHARTER — Mayor-Council Plan as amended and supplemented in N.J.S.A. 40A:62-1 et seq., and any and all general laws as therein defined which are or may be applicable to the Town form of government.

CLERK OR TOWN CLERK — The Municipal Clerk of the Town of Dover.

CODE — The Administrative Code, 1995, and all amendments and supplements thereto.

BOARD OF ALDERMEN — The members of the Town's Board of Aldermen constituted pursuant to the Charter and formerly known as the "Board of Aldermen."

DEPARTMENT — An organization unit or group of organizational units of the Town government or designated as a department by this chapter.

DIRECTOR — The individual placed in charge of a department's activities pursuant to this Code or the Charter.

ELECTION — The Mayor and Board of Aldermen shall be elected at a November general election.

GOVERNING BODY — The Board of Aldermen created and constituted pursuant to the Charter.

MAYOR — The individual serving as chief executive officer of the Town pursuant to the Charter.

MONTH — A calendar month unless otherwise specifically provided.

PERSON — Any corporation, firm, partnership, association, organization or other entity, as well as individual.

TOWN — The Town of Dover, in the County of Morris, State of New Jersey as governed by the provisions of the Charter.

YEAR — A calendar year unless otherwise specifically provided.

§ 2-2. Word usage.

For the purposes of the Administrative Code and any other ordinances heretofore or hereafter adopted, except as the context may otherwise require:

- A. The present tense includes the past and future tenses and the future, the present.
- B. The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter.
- C. The singular number includes the plural, and the plural the singular.
- D. The time within which an act is to be done shall be computed by excluding the first and including the last day, and if the last day be a Sunday or a legal holiday, that day shall be excluded.
- E. "Writing" or "written" include printing, typewriting, stencil duplicating, computer printout, magnetic media and any other visual mode of reproducing words or figures on paper-like material which is in general use.

§ 2-3. Personnel.

- A. Personnel generally.
 - (1) All appointments and promotions in the civil service of the Town shall be made by the Administrator or appointing authority according to any pertinent civil service requirements, pertinent contractual obligations and within the general limits of the municipal budget.
 - (2) The compensation of all officers and employees shall be in such amount and at such rates as shall be prescribed by the employment agreement which conforms to the Salary Ordinance adopted by the Board of Aldermen.

- (3) The days and hours of work of individual employees shall be assigned and scheduled by the respective department heads, subject to the approval of the Administrator, so that Town business may be conducted without interruption and Town services shall be provided as conditions may require during the regular business hours of the Town government and during such emergencies as may arise.
- B. Personnel policy and practices. The Administrator shall be the responsible person for the preparation and administration of a system of personnel policy and practices, subject to the approval of the Board of Aldermen. Such policy and practices shall cover all personnel matters not inconsistent with the Civil Service Law and Regulation, including, without limitation thereto, classification, compensation, vacations, sick leave, holidays, grievances, in service training and such other practices and procedures as the Administrator may deem necessary or desirable to the administration of a sound personnel system. Such policy and practice shall be adopted by the Board of Aldermen in the form of a resolution.
- C. Office hours. The normal office hours for the transaction of municipal business shall be from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday of each week, except on legal holidays, and such additional hours as the Board of Aldermen may by resolution require with respect to particular departments or divisions.
- D. Antidiscrimination. In addition to the requirements of the Civil Service Law and Regulations, in the appointment and promotion of any officer or employee who is compensated by Town funds, no political, racial, religious or ethnic test or qualifications shall be permitted or given consideration nor shall handicapped persons be in any way discriminated against.
- E. Political activity. No municipal officer or employee shall directly or indirectly use or seek to use his authority or official influence to control or modify the political action of another person; nor shall any paid officer or employee, during the hours of duty, engage in any political activity, with respect to any candidate for elective office therein. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent an elected officer from campaigning at any time.
- F. Dual appointments. The Administrator may appoint the same person to serve as head of two or more committee departments, and a department head may also be appointed by the Administrator to serve as head of a division within his department. The Administrator may appoint a division head to serve as the head of two or more divisions or as Purchasing Agent, so long as the functions, powers and duties of such appointments are not inconsistent with the approval of the Board of Aldermen.
- G. Delivery of funds and records.
 - (1) Upon the termination of the term of office or the employment of any officer or employee, he shall forthwith deliver to his successor or, if there be no successor, then to the Clerk or other person who may be designated by the Board of Aldermen to receive the same all moneys, papers, books, memoranda, accounts and data of any nature whatsoever pertaining to his office. Upon receipt, the successor, the Clerk or person designated by the Board of Aldermen shall schedule an audit regarding said delivery of funds and records.
 - (2) Upon termination of employment of any officer or employee, an exit interview is to be conducted by the department head and/or Administrator.
- I. Nondisclosure of information. No municipal official or employee shall, without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential information concerning the property, government or affairs of the Town, nor shall he use such information to advance the financial or other private interest of himself or others. The Board of Aldermen may, from time to time, determine by resolution what shall be deemed confidential for the purposes of this section in accordance with N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 to N.J.S.A. 10:4-21.

§ 2-4. Mayor.

- A. The Mayor shall be the chief executive of the Town. The Mayor shall be elected by the voters of the Town of Dover and shall be known as the Alderman-at-large. He shall serve for a term of four (4) years. The Mayor shall prepare the Agenda and shall preside over the deliberations of the Board of Aldermen. He shall also participate in the determination of the Town affairs to the extent permitted by law.
- B. The Mayor shall on all occasions preserve the strictest order and decorum, and he shall cause the removal of any persons who interrupt the orderly proceedings of the Board of Aldermen.

- C. When two or more Board of Aldermen members shall rise at the same time, the Mayor shall name the one entitled to the floor.
- D. The Mayor shall decide all questions of order without debate and may call upon the Town Attorney upon any questions of order.
- E. The Mayor shall be a member of all committees, both standing and special, and shall be informed in advance of all meetings of such committees.
- **F.** The Mayor shall serve as the liaison between the governing body and all boards, committees, agencies or organizations except as herein assigned to a specific committee for liaison purposes.
- G. The Mayor shall be so designated in all official documents and instruments of every kind and shall sign all ordinances, documents, bond notes, contracts and other special documents and instruments by that title.
- H. The Mayor shall have all those powers placed in the Mayor by general law.
- I. The Mayor shall be known as the Alderman-at-large, preside at all its meetings and possess all the powers of a member of the Board of Aldermen.
- J. Only those recognized by the Mayor during Town Meeting, including any Board of Alderman member, will be able to hold the floor and speak.
- K. The Mayor, Administrator, and Clerk shall prepare an agenda for all meetings of the Board of Aldermen. Any Board of Aldermen member can request consideration for items to be included on the agenda. Said request must be received by the Friday preceding the Board of Aldermen meeting at 12:00 noon. The Mayor at his sole discretion will decide whether any of such items are to be included in the agenda.
- L. Any resolution not previously placed on the agenda will have to be approved by Mayor prior to it being introduced. No resolution or item may introduced from the floor except by the Mayor or with the Mayor's approval including, and without any limitations, any resolution or motion to suspend any of these rules.

§ 2-5. Elected officials.

- A. Enumerated. The elected officers of the Town of Dover shall be a Mayor and Board of Aldermen consisting of eight Aldermen all elected by wards. The Mayor shall be elected at large and shall also be known as an "Alderman at Large."
- B. Terms of office.
 - (1) The Mayor shall hold office for four (4) years from January 1 next following his/her election.
 - (2) The Board of Alderman shall hold office for two (2) years from January 1 next following his/her election.

§ 2-6. Town Clerk.

- A. Appointment; term. The Town Clerk shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen for a term of three (3) years, subject to any right of tenure. The Town Clerk shall receive such annual compensation as shall be provided in the Employment Contract and Salary Ordinance, prior to the period of tenure. Any person who shall be reappointed Town Clerk subsequent to having received a registered Municipal Clerk Certificate pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:9-133 et seq. and having served as Town Clerk or performed the duties of Town Clerk for not less than three consecutive years immediately prior to such reappointment shall hold his or her office during good behavior and efficiency, notwithstanding that such reappointment was for a fixed term of years; and he shall not be removed therefrom for political reasons but only for good cause shown and in accordance with the provisions set forth in N.J.S.A. 40A:9-133.7. No Town Clerk shall acquire tenure of office unless he or she holds a Municipal Clerk Certificate pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:9-133 et seq.
- B. General duties.
 - (1) The Town Clerk shall have charge of all record books and documents of the Town, except when the Board of Aldermen directs otherwise. He shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Board of Aldermen and record all ordinances in a book to be provided for that purpose, which shall be deemed a public record of such ordinances. Each ordinance so recorded shall be signed by the Mayor and the Clerk.
 - (2) The Clerk shall turn over to the Treasurer without delay all moneys received by him for the use of the Town. His office shall be at the Town Hall, and he shall keep his office open for the transaction of public business during the hours specified by the Board of Aldermen.
 - (3) Perform all of the functions required of Municipal Clerks by the General Election Law (Title 19 of the New Jersey Statutes) and any other state law or other town ordinance, and receive the fees prescribed therefor for the use of the town.
 - (4) Issue all licenses required by law or ordinance, faithfully make all reports required by law or ordinance to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen and monthly account for all fees received by him or her.
 - (5) See to it that all ordinances and notices of the Town of Dover are properly advertised.
 - (6) Take care of all correspondence of the municipality and the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen.
 - (7) Administer oaths.
 - (8) Be custodian of all leases or property owned by the Town.

- (9) Have such other, different and additional functions, powers and duties as may be prescribed by law, or ordinance or regulation.
- C. Corporate Seal. The Clerk shall cause the Corporate Seal of the Town to be affixed to the instruments and writings when authorized by ordinance or resolution of the Board of Aldermen or when necessary to exemplify any document on record in his office or to certify any act or paper which, from the records in his office, appears to have been a public act of the Town or a public document. He shall not affix the Seal or cause or permit it to be affixed to any other instrument, writing or paper unless required by law or ordinance.
- D. Insurance; surety bonds; contracts. The Clerk, subject to the supervision of the Board of Aldermen, shall:
 - (1) Be the depository for and custodian of all official surety bonds furnished by or on account of any officer or employee, except his Be the depository for own bond, which shall be placed into the custody of the Treasurer; of all insurance policies upon or with respect to risks insured for the benefits of the Town or to protect it against any claim, demand or liability whatsoever; and all formal contracts for work, labor, services, supplies, equipment and materials to which the Town may be a party.
 - (2) Be the depository for and custodian of all performance bonds running to the Town as obligee or any other form of security given by a contractor, subdivision developer or other person on account, of work done or to be done in or for the Town.
 - (3) Report to the Board of Aldermen annually, at such time as it may require, on the coverage, expiration date and premium of each surety bond and contract of insurance, the nature and terms of outstanding leases, the rent reserved by each and their respective expiration dates.
- E. Administrative rules and regulations; filing and publication. No rule or general regulation made by any department, officer, agency or authority of the Town, except such as relates to the organization or internal management of the Town government or a part thereof, shall take effect until it is filed with the Clerk. The Clerk shall maintain a current compilation of all such rules and regulations, which shall be available for public inspection in his office during business hours.

§ 2-7. Board of Aldermen.

- A. The Board of Aldermen shall be the legislative body of the municipality.
- B. The Board of Aldermen may, subject to general law:
 - (1) Pass, adopt, amend and repeal any ordinance or, where permitted, any resolution for any purpose required for the government of the municipality or for the accomplishment of any public purpose for which the municipality is authorized to act under general law.
 - (2) Control and regulate the finances of the municipality and raise money by borrowing and taxation.
 - (3) Create such offices and positions, by resolution, as it may deem necessary. The officers appointed thereto shall perform the duties required by law and the ordinances of the Board of Aldermen.
 - (4) Remove, by resolution, any officer of the municipality, other than those officers excepted by law, for cause.
 - (5) In the absence of the Mayor, select a member to serve as Chairman Pro Tem and preside over the deliberations of the Board of Aldermen.
- **C.** The Board of Aldermen shall, by resolution, appoint such subordinate officers as it may deem necessary, except as otherwise noted by this Code.
- D. Every officer appointed pursuant to this section shall hold office during his official term and until his successor shall have been duly appointed and qualified.
- E. The Board of Aldermen may delegate all or a portion of the executive responsibilities of the municipality to an Administrator.
- **F.** Any meetings of the Board of Aldermen, unless specifically provided for pursuant to some provision of this Code or law, shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order 1983 Edition, a copy of which shall be retained on file by the Town Clerk. [Added 6-21-2004 by Ord. No. 18-2004]
- G. The Mayor, Administrator, and Clerk shall prepare an agenda for all meetings of the Board of Aldermen. Any Board of Aldermen member can request consideration for items to be included on the agenda. Said request must be received by the Friday preceding the Board of Aldermen meeting at 12:00 noon. The Mayor at his sole discretion will decide whether any of such items are to be included in the agenda.
- H. Any resolution and/or item not previously placed on the agenda will have to be approved by Mayor prior to it being introduced at any meeting.

§ 2-8.1 Town Administrator. [Amended 12-13-2005 by Ord. No. 36-2005]

A. The Town Administrator shall, under the supervision and control of the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen, perform such duties as may be requested from time to time other than those required by law to be exercised by the governing body itself or by another officer or body and to the extent not prohibited by law. Such duties and responsibilities shall include but not be limited to the coordination of operations, activities and administration of all departments, divisions, offices, boards and agencies of the Town government and exchanging and disseminating information and generally advising and consulting with the Board of Aldermen without infringing upon the lawful powers and

duties of other officers, boards and departments. In addition, the Administrator shall have the following specific duties and responsibilities:

- (1) To serve as chief administrative officer of the Town.
- (2) To attend all meetings of the Board of Aldermen as required, with the right to participate in all discussions but without the right to vote.
- (3) To advise the governing body on policy decisions.
- (4) To execute all laws of the State of New Jersey and execute ordinances and resolutions of the Town, subject to the direction of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.
- (5) As the appointing authority, to appoint and remove employees, subject to the approval of the Mayor, for whose selection and removal no other method is provided by law.
- (6) To negotiate contracts, subject to the approval of the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen.
- (7) To make recommendations concerning the nature and location of Town improvements as determined by the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen.
- (8) To recommend to the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen the adoption of such measures as he, the Administrator, may deem necessary or expedient.
- (9) To represent the Town in its relations with the federal government, state, county and other municipalities and assess the Town's interest in contracts, franchises and other business transactions.
- (10) To make reports to the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen as required.
- (11) To investigate the affairs of any officer or department at the initiation of the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen and to report to the Board on the work of all departments.
- (12) To receive and reply to all inquiries and complaints concerning Town business and to provide information and assistance in respect thereto and, in addition, to review, suggest a method for handling and follow up on all requests for information.
- (13) To establish and maintain effective personnel practices and maintain records of all employees.
- (14) To carry out all policies established by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.
- (15) In consultation with the Municipal Auditor and department heads, to prepare the annual operating and capital budgets and submit them to the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen at a date and in accordance with procedures established by the Board and state law.
- (16) To supervise the disbursement of all Town funds and approve all vouchers and bills before submitting the same to the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen for final approval.
- (17) To maintain a continuing review and analysis of budget operations, work programs and costs of municipal services.
- (18) To delegate to any department head such of his powers as he may deem necessary for efficient administration.
- (19) To implement and enforce the policy of Mayor and the Board of Aldermen with respect to the compiling and release of public information.
- (20) To keep the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen informed as to federal aid projects and state aid projects and any other aid programs for which the Town may qualify.
- (21) To perform such other duties as may be required by ordinance, resolution or direction of the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen.
- (22) To control the hiring and firing of all employees, subject to Mayor approval, below the rank of a department head, all such action to be within the scope of the New Jersey Department of Personnel regulations and all other local, state or federal regulations.
- (23) To have the authority to assign, reassign or combine functions and personnel in any department in order to effectuate an orderly and efficient operation.
- (24) To receive, review and disseminate all correspondence addressed to the Town of Dover and any of its officials, unless it is clearly marked personal and confidential.
- (25) In conjunction with the Auditor, where deemed necessary, to control and approve all transfers of funds within or from department budgets and, further, from time to time to require all departments heads to justify purchases and expenditures, subject to quotations or bids previously obtained.
- B. Designation of substitute.
 - The Town Administrator may designate a qualified municipal employee of the Town, subject to the Mayor's approval, to perform his duties during his temporary absence or disability. In the event of his failure to make such designation, the Mayor, may appoint such a substitute Administrator for the aforesaid purposes.
- C. Administrative powers. Except for the purpose of inquiry, the governing body and its committees shall deal with the administrative service solely through the Municipal Administrator, and the Board of Aldermen (excluding the Mayor) nor any of its committees shall give orders, publicly or privately, to any subordinates of the Administrator.
- D. Annual meetings.
 (1) The Mayor and Board of Aldermen shall hold an annual meeting on January 1 of each year at 12:00 noon or soon after, but no later than January 8 of each year.

- (2) At the aforesaid meeting, the Board of Aldermen shall fix the time and place for holding regular meetings during the ensuing year.
- (3) The following order of business shall be observed at the regular monthly meetings of the Board of Aldermen for the conduct of official business:
 - (a) Call to order.
 - (b) Pledge of Allegiance.
 - (c) Call of the roll.
 - (d) Approval of minutes.
 - (e) Report of committees.
 - (f) Presentations of communications, petitions, etc.
 - (g) Invitation for discussion by the public concerning items on public agenda (only).
 - (h) Approval of vouchers.
 - (i) Approval of resolutions.
 - (j) Advertised hearings.
 - (k) Introduction of ordinances.
 - (1) Unfinished or new business.
 - (m) Invitation for discussion by the public.
 - (n) Adjournment.

§2-8.2 Creation of the Office of Deputy Town Administrator

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40AA:9-136, et seq., there is hereby created in the Town of Dover the office of Deputy Town Administrator.

Deputy Town Administrator

- A. The Deputy Town Administrator shall be appointed by the Mayor and term shall run concurrent with the Mayor's term for four (4) years and until his successor has been appointed and qualified. The Deputy Town Administrator shall receive such compensation as shall be provided for in the Employment Contract and confirmed by the salary ordinance. In addition to administrative assistance, research and special assignments at the direction of the administrator, the Assistant Town Administrator shall perform the following duties:
 - (1) Attend meeting when Town Administrator is unavailable;
 - (2) Administer salary and wage compensation programs;
 - (3) Administer the program of employees' fringe benefits;
 - (4) Maintain liaison with State Division of Pensions;
 - (5) Administer Town Safety Programs;
 - (6) Participate in labor negotiations; and
 - (7) Any other duties as assigned by the Town Administrator.
- B. The Deputy Town Administrator shall be considered a Director and may concurrently serve as a Director of any other Town Department.

§ 2-9. Standing committees. [Amended 11-10-1998 by Ord. No. 33-1998; 2-10-2004 by Ord. No. 1-2004; 1-25-2005 by Ord. No. 1-2005]

- Α. The following standing committees of the Board of Aldermen, consisting of at least two Aldermen each (other than the Mayor, ex officio officer), shall be appointed by the Mayor at the annual reorganization meeting:
 - (1) Finance:
 - (2) Police;
 - (3) Fire;
 - (4) Public Works;
 - (5) Recreation, Library and Education;
 - (6) Health;
 - (7) Economic Development and Redevelopment;
 - (8) Personnel; and
 - (9) Engineering, Zoning, Construction and Code Enforcement.
- B. Committee membership. The Mayor shall appoint a Chairman and two (2) additional Alderman to each of the nine standing committees named in this section.
- Appointment. The Mayor shall appoint all committees, of which the Mayor shall be a member, ex officio, of each such committee. In addition, the Mayor shall see that all matters referred to the committees are acted upon and reported promptly.

- D. Purpose of standing committee. Standing committees are appointed to expedite and facilitate the work of the Board of Aldermen, but only within statutory limits, as the entire Board of Aldermen is held responsible for any or all of its acts.
 - (1) A standing committee shall:
 - (a) Plan, stage and direct the committee within budgetary limitations and carry on the routine activities for which it has primary responsibility.
 - (b) Perform such acts as may be assigned to it by the Board of Aldermen or the Mayor.
 - (c) Report and make recommendations to the Mayor and/or Board of Aldermen regarding its responsibilities and activities.
 - (d) Meet at least once a month.
 - (2) Except as provided above, a standing committee shall not:
 - (a) Exceed its budgetary appropriations without prior approval of the Board of Aldermen.
 - (b) Make promises or commitments to anyone which directly bind the Board of Aldermen.
 - (c) Act in a manner or make decisions which set a precedent or violate established Board of Aldermen policy.
 - E. Special committees. Special committees may be appointed for purposes other than those included in the duties of the standing committees.
 - F. Reports by committees. The Chairman of each standing or special committee shall be prepared to report to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen at each regular meeting on the principal activities and achievements of his Committee. He shall also prepare a report and submit it in writing to the Mayor not later than December 1 of each year.
 - G. Duties of standing committees.
 - (1) Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall have primary responsibility for the following described activities and matters:
 - (a) The administration, practices, procedures and records of the following:
 - [1] The Town Clerk;
 - [2] The Tax Collector;
 - [3] The Tax Assessor; and
 - [4] The Chief Financial Officer.
 - (b) The initiation of foreclosure action and subsequent administration and disposition of property acquired by the Town under foreclosure of tax title liens.
 - (c) The coordination of department budgets; the preparation of budgetary figures relating to the activities above-mentioned; and the final preparation, explanatory and continuing supervision of the entire municipal budget.
 - (d) The review, revision and all other matters pertaining to any insurance coverage of the Town.
 - (e) To serve as the liaison between the Board of Aldermen and the registered municipal accountants and any other body or organization on fiscal matters.
 - (2) Police Committee. The Police Committee shall have primary responsibility for the following described activities and matters:
 - (a) The administration, practices, procedures and records of the following:
 - [1] Police Department.
 - [2] Granting of licenses and the inspection of licensed premises and persons, as designated by the Board of Aldermen.
 - [3] Highway, traffic and all parking matters (except construction and maintenance of municipal parking lots).
 - [4] The Office of Emergency Management.
 - [5] Transportation companies.

- (b) It shall serve as the liaison between the Board of Aldermen and the Judge of the Municipal Court and all organizations or agencies concerned with public safety.
- (3) Fire Committee. The Fire Committee shall have primary responsibility for the following described activities and matters:
 - (a) The administration, practices, procedures and records of the following:
 - [1] Dover Fire Department.
 - [2] Dover Emergency Squad.
- (4) Public Works Committee. The Public Works Committee shall have primary responsibility for the following described activities and matters:
 - (a) The administration, practices, procedures and records of the following:
 - [1] Road repairs, improvement, maintenance and cleaning, including street openings.
 - [2] Repair and maintenance of curbs.
 - [3] Maintenance of and operation of the Public Works garage.
 - [4] Maintenance of vehicles and other mechanical equipment, as assigned.
 - [5] Off-street parking lots, repair, improvement and maintenance and cleaning.
 - [6] Stormwater collection and disposal.
 - [7] Maintenance of publicly owned buildings and grounds.
 - [8] Sanitary sewer collection and transmission system.
 - (5) Recreation, Library and Education Committee. The Recreation, Library and Education Committee shall meet with nonprofit and local civic groups regarding recreation and education issues and shall have the primary responsibility and serve as liaison for the Mayor and Board of Alderman with the Dover Board of Education and the Dover Recreation Commission, as well as the Dover Public Library Board.
 - (6) Health Committee. The Health Committee shall have primary responsibility for the following described activities and matters:
 - (a) The administration, practices, procedures and records of the following:
 - [1] The Animal Control Officer.
 - (b) It shall also serve as the liaison between the Board of Aldermen and the following:
 - [1] Juvenile Conference Committee.
 - [2] Board of Health.
 - (7) Economic Development and Redevelopment Committee. The Economic Development Committee shall have the primary responsibility to perform studies and make recommendations concerning economic development and redevelopment, including but not limited to helping existing businesses grow, encouraging new businesses to be started and attracting business from outside the Town.
 - (8) Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee shall have the primary responsibility to periodically review policies and procedures for inclusion in the Town's Personnel Manual as well as participate in the grievance procedure as may be required by collective bargaining agreements.
- (9) Engineering, Zoning, Construction and Code Enforcement Committee. The Engineering, Zoning, Construction and Code Enforcement Committee shall serve as the liaison between the Mayor and Board of Aldermen and the Engineering, Zoning, Construction and Code Enforcement Departments.

§ 2-10. Bills, claims and vouchers.

A. Forms of bills or claims. All bills or claims against the Town shall be in writing, fully itemized and on such forms as the Town shall provide for that purpose. As required by statute, they shall be sworn to by the claimant before submission for approval and payment.

- B. Certification of claims; presentation; approval. All bills and claims must be supported by a certification of the receipt of the goods or the satisfactory rendering of the service or services by the responsible person accepting the same on behalf of the Town and who may be held accountable therefor.
- C. Presentation and approvals of vouchers.
 - (1) All vouchers recommended for payment shall be presented to the Board of Aldermen by the Town Clerk at a regular meeting or an adjourned regular meeting.
 - (2) Authorization to draw the checks and pay the amounts of the approved vouchers shall be by resolution of the Board of Aldermen.
- D. Presentation of checks for signature. The corresponding vouchers shall accompany all checks in payment thereof when said checks are presented to the Mayor, the Treasurer and to the Town Clerk for signature.
- E. Storage of bills, vouchers and paid checks. All bills, vouchers and paid checks shall be filed in a safe place and be made available for public inspection.

§ 2-11. Amendments.

- A. Proposal of amendments; consideration.
- (1) The Mayor or any member of the Board of Aldermen may propose amendments to this chapter at any regular Board of Aldermen meeting or adjourned regular meeting.
- (2) The Mayor will then appoint a special committee of three members of the Board of Aldermen to consider the proposed amendments and, in addition, may submit other suggested changes.
- B. Recommendations. The special committee will present its recommendations at a regular meeting or adjourned regular meeting of the Board of Aldermen.
- **C.** Vote for amendment. This chapter shall only be altered or amended by a majority vote on a roll call taken at two successive regular meetings or adjourned regular meeting of the Board of Aldermen.

§ 2-12. Town Attorney.

- A. The appointment of a Town Attorney is hereby authorized for a one-year term upon appointment by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and until his successor has been appointed and qualified.
- B. Duties. The Town Attorney shall direct and supervise all legal matters of the Town. He shall attend meetings of the Board of Aldermen. He shall review and advise on ordinances and resolutions. The Town Attorney shall prepare or approve all legal instruments relating to the business of the Town. The Town Attorney shall render legal advice and counsel as may be required by the Mayor and/or Board of Aldermen; shall appear as the attorney of record in their behalf and shall draft all contracts, resolutions, ordinances and documents normally and ordinarily required in connection therewith. The Town Attorney shall receive such compensation as provided in an annual agreement approved by resolution. In addition, all disbursements incurred by the Town Attorney, shall be included in a monthly, itemized bill. "Disbursements" are defined as any out of pocket expenses incurred by the attorney in connection with the provision of legal services to the Town.
- C. Additional Duties. The Town Attorney shall also:
- (1) Maintain records of all actions, suits, proceedings and matters which relate to the Town's interest and report thereon as the Mayor or Board of Aldermen may require.
- (2) Have power to enter into any agreement, compromise or settlement of any litigation in which the Town is involved, subject to the approval of the Board of Aldermen.
- (3) When called upon by the Mayor, resolve any disputes or issues related to the Rules and Procedures at any Board of Alderman Meeting.

Upon the termination of his service with the Town, the Town Attorney shall forthwith surrender to his successor all Town property, papers and records together with a written consent to substitution of his successor in any pending actions or proceedings.

§ 2-13. Municipal Prosecutor

The appointment of a Municipal Prosecutor is hereby approved, for a one- year term upon appointment by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and until his successor has been appointed and qualified. The Municipal Prosecutor shall receive such compensation as provided in an annual agreement approved by resolution. The Municipal Prosecutor shall represent the Town in all matters heard in the Town of Dover Municipal Court. The Mayor, with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen, may appoint additional or alternate Municipal Prosecutors under the same terms and conditions as the Prosecutor, as same may be required for the proper and orderly administration of the Court. All Municipal Prosecutors shall be licensed to practice law in the State of New Jersey.

§ 2-14. Chief Financial Officer

A. The Chief Financial Officer shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen for a term of three years and until his successor has been appointed and qualified. The Chief Financial Officer shall receive such compensation as shall be provided for in the Employment contract and confirmed by the salary

ordinance. The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for the proper financial administration of the municipality pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:9-140.10 and is responsible for the proper financial administration of the municipality and such other statutes and rules and regulations promulgated by the Director of the Division of Local Governmental Services, the Local Finance Board or any other state agencies as may pertain to the administration of the municipality. In addition to duties specified by the Revised Statutes of New Jersey, the Chief Financial Officer shall perform the following duties:

- (1) Pursuant to all applicable statutes, code, and laws, invest all monies of the Town not required for the current operations or deposit same in interest bearing accounts.
- (2) Make disbursements of town funds on warrants by an individual warrant check for each bill, claim, wage and salary payment as approved by the Town Administrator. Every warrant shall be made payable to the care of the person entitled to receive same and shall specify the purpose for which it is drawn and the account or appropriation for which it is chargeable. Each warrant check shall bear the signature of the Mayor, Town Clerk and Chief Financial Officer.
- (3) Keep a full systematic account of all cash receipts and disbursements.
- (4) At least once a month, furnish the Mayor, Finance Committee Chairman and Town Administrator with a statement of all monies received and expended by the Chief Financial Officer, subsequent to his last report.
- (5) Prepare for each regular meeting of the Board of Aldermen, a certified list of all bills, claims and vouchers which have been approved for payment by the Town Administrator on the Friday next preceding the meeting and since the last preceding list was compiled. Such list shall be on file with the Town Clerk.
- (6) Maintain the Town's central accounting records and a uniform system of accounts for all departments in the Town government to facilitate the production of an annual audit.
- (7) Pre-audit all bills, claims and demands against the Town including payrolls, for which each department head shall be required to certify that the materials, supplies or equipment have been received or the services rendered.
- (8) Obtain at least once a month, reports of all receipts from each department of the Town.
- (9) Maintain budget appropriation commitment system.
- (10) Determine that sufficient uncommitted balances are available within each appropriation to provide funds for the payment of all supplies and service requests.
- (11) Keep books and records of account to show the amount of each appropriation, the amount paid therefrom, the amount committed against, unpaid obligations and unencumbered balance thereof.
- B. The Chief Financial Officer who has serve the Town of Dover for a period of not less than five consecutive years while holding a Municipal Finance Officer Certificate issued in accordance with P.L. 1971, c. 413, and who thereafter is appointed as the chief financial officer of the Town of Dover, shall be granted tenure of office upon the filing with the clerk of the municipality and the Director of the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs a notification evidencing his compliance with this section.
- C. The Chief Financial Officer who has held office continuously for five consecutive years in the Town of Dover may continue to serve in his current position and shall not be removed from office or denied reappointment for failure to qualify as a certified municipal finance officer pursuant to provisions of P.L. 1971, c. 413. However, any such individual shall not be entitled to be appointed as the chief financial officer of the Town of Dover unless he possesses a municipal finance officer certificate.

§ 2-15. Treasurer.

- A. The Treasurer shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall serve for such time fixed by law for Treasurers and until his successor has been appointed and qualified and shall be paid the sum provided in the Employment Contract and conform to the Salary Ordinance The Treasurer shall be the custodian of Town funds committed to his keeping and shall perform such other duties as are prescribed by the laws of the State of New Jersey and by resolution of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen pertaining to the office of Treasurer.
- B. Whenever a person has or shall have held the office of municipal treasurer for 10 consecutive years, the governing body of the Town of Dover may grant tenure in office to such person. In the event the governing body fails to grant tenure in office to a municipal treasurer who has held that office for 10 consecutive years, a petition may be filed for a referendum vote on the question of whether the municipal treasurer shall continue to hold office during good behavior and efficiency, and shall not be removed therefrom except for just cause and then only after public hearing upon a written complaint setting forth the charge or charges against him. The petition shall be signed by at least 10% of the registered voters of the municipality and filed with the municipal clerk. Upon the filing of the petition the question shall be submitted to the voters at the next general election which shall occur not less than 60 days thereafter. The municipal clerk shall cause the question to be placed upon the official ballot to be used at the general election in the manner provided by law in substantially the following form: "Shall the municipal treasurer continue to hold office during good behavior and efficiency and not be removed therefrom except for just cause and then only after public hearing upon a written complaint setting forth the charge or charges against him?" Immediately to the left of the question there shall be printed the words "Yes" and "No", each with a square, in either of which the voter may make a cross (x), or a plus

sign (+) or check mark (\checkmark) according to his choice. There shall also be printed the following: "Place a cross (x), or a plus sign (+) or check mark (\checkmark) in one of the above squares indicating your choice." Where voting machines are used, voting thereon shall be equivalent to the foregoing. The election shall be held in accordance with the general law relating to public questions to be voted on in a single municipality at elections as provided for by Title 19 (Elections) of the Revised Statutes.

§ 2-16. Tax Collector.

- A. The Tax Collector shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall old his office for a term of four years from January 1 next following his/her appointment and until his successor has been appointed and qualified and shall be paid the sum provided in the Employment Contract and conform to the Salary Ordinance. Vacancies other than due to the expiration of term shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term. The Tax Collector shall have the duty of collecting and accounting for taxes and assessments due to the Town of Dover, in addition to such other duties as may be prescribed by the laws of the State of New Jersey. The Tax Collector shall hold office such time as it is prescribed by statute and shall be compensated at the annual salary established in the Salary Ordinance.
- B. The Tax Collector who shall be reappointed subsequent to having received a tax collector certificate pursuant to section 3 or 4 of P.L. 1979, or holds a tax collector certificate issued pursuant to N.J.S. 40A:9-141, section 2 of P.L. 1979, c. 384 and section 6 of P.L. 1993, c. 25 and having served as tax collector or performed the duties of tax collector for not less than four years immediately prior to such reappointment or, shall have acquired tenure; shall hold his office during good behavior, efficiency and compliance with requirements for continuing education pursuant to sections 6 and 7 of P.L. 1993, c. 25, notwithstanding that such reappointment was for a fixed term of years; and he shall not be removed therefrom for political reasons but only for good cause shown and after a proper hearing before the director or his designee in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:9-145.8. During the months of January, April, July and October, the Tax Collector shall work according to a schedule set by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen by resolution. The hours worked by the Tax Collector and all Deputies shall be monitored by the Town Administrator.

§ 2-17. Tax Assessor.

The Tax Assessor shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall serve for a term of four years from July 1 next following his appointment and until his successor has been appointed and qualified and shall be paid the sum provided in the Employment Contract and conform to the Salary Ordinance. The Tax Assessor shall have and perform the duties of levying and assigning all taxes and assessments on behalf of the Town of Dover and of defending and upholding all such levies and assessments, pursuant to the laws of the State of New Jersey.

§ 2-18. Town Auditor.

The Town Auditor shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen for a one-year term and until his successor has been appointed and qualified and shall be paid the sum provided in the Employment Contract and conform to the Salary Ordinance. The Town Auditor shall audit the books of the Town offices and employees in conformance with the requirements of the State of New Jersey and shall perform such other and additional services as may be required of him.

§ 2-19. Public Works Department. [Amended 2-9-2016 by Ord. No. 02-2016]

- A. The Director of Municipal Services shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall serve at the pleasure of the governing body and until his successor has been appointed and qualified in accordance with all applicable law and regulations. The Director of Municipal Services shall be an unclassified position and not subject to the laws, regulations or procedures of the Civil Service Act, N.J.S.A. 11A:1-1 et seq. The Director of Municipal Services is a high-level municipal title and is a subordinate officer as deemed necessary by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for the Town of Dover in compliance with N.J.S.A. 40A:62-6(d). The Director of Municipal Services shall receive such annual compensation as shall be provided in the Employment Agreement and confirmed by the Salary Ordinance.
- B. Duties of the Public Works Department include the cleaning of the public streets, maintenance of sewers, removal and disposal of ashes, garbage, refuse and waste matter and maintenance of parks and other publicly owned buildings and grounds by the Town of Dover.
- C. Supervision of the Department. The Public Works Department shall be under the supervision and control of the Director of Municipal Services. The Director of Municipal Services shall be under the authority and the direction of the Town Administrator as delegated by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.

§ 2-20. Municipal Court.

- **A.** Name of Court. A Municipal Court to be named "Municipal Court of the Town of Dover in the County of Morris" is hereby established in the Town pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 2A:8-1 et seq.
- **B.** Judge of the Municipal Court. The Judge of the Municipal Court shall have the qualifications, possess such tenure of office and have, possess and exercise all the functions, powers, duties and jurisdiction as is conferred

upon such Judge by the provisions of N.J.S.A. 2A:8-1 et seq.8 and as may be conferred upon him by law. The Municipal Judge shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall serve until his successor has been appointed and qualified in accordance with all applicable law and regulations.

- **C.** Court Administrator.
 - (1) The mayor shall appointment of a Court Administrator for the Municipal Court. Such Court Administrator shall be under direction and supervision of the Judge of the Municipal Court at an annual salary as shall be fixed by ordinance.
 - (2) Duties. The Court Administrator shall perform the duties of the Director of Municipal Court whenever necessary and in the absence or disability of the Court Director.
 - (3) The Court Administrator shall supervise, operate and maintain the sound and recording system of the Municipal Court and the Director of the Municipal Court of the Town of Dover, New Jersey, and shall perform such other duties as may be authorized or required by the Judge of the Municipal Court and subject to law.

§ 2-21. Defense and indemnification of municipal employees.

- A. Purpose. It is the intent and purpose of this section to provide for the defense of actions against, and the indemnification of, public employees as permitted by N.J.S.A. 59:10-4.
- B. Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: EMPLOYEE Any elected or appointed official or any officer, employee or servant, whether or not compensated or part-time, who is authorized to perform any act or service; provided, however, that the term does not include an independent contractor.
 - PUBLIC EMPLOYEE Any employee or former employee of the Town.
- **C.** Provisions for defense. The Town shall provide for the defense of any action brought against a public employee on account of any act or omission in the scope of his employment, and this obligation shall extend to any cross action, counterclaim or cross complaint against such employee.
- D. Exceptions. The provisions for defense shall not be applicable when the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, through resolution, determine that:
 - (1) The act or omission was not within the scope of employment.
 - (2) The act or failure to act was because of actual fraud, willful misconduct or actual malice.
 - (3) The defense of the action or proceeding would create a conflict of interest between the Town and the public employee.
 - (4) The defense of the action or proceeding is provided for by an insurance policy or policies; whether obtained by the Town or by any other person.
 - (5) The public employee failed to deliver to the Town Clerk, within 10 calendar days after the time he is served with any summons, complaint, process, notice, demand or pleading, the original or a copy of the same.
 - (6) The public employee has failed to cooperate fully with the defense.
- E. Methods of providing defense. The Town may provide any defense required of it under this section through an attorney from the Morris County Municipal Joint Insurance Fund or any potential successor carrier. The Town shall in no event be responsible for costs or attorney's fees incurred by anyone unless it shall have agreed in writing to the terms of this representation.
- F. Control over litigation. Whenever the Town provides any defense required of it under this section, the Town, through its Town Attorney or outside counsell, may assume exclusive control over the representation of the public employee, and such employee shall cooperate fully with the defense.
- G. Indemnification.
 - (1) In any case where the Town is required to provide a defense under this section, the Town shall pay or shall reimburse the public employee for the following:
 - (a) Any bona fide settlement agreements entered into by the Town on behalf of the employee.
 - (b) Any judgments entered against the employee, including but not limited to exemplary or punitive damages resulting from the employee's civil violation of state or federal law if, in the opinion of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, the acts committed by the employee upon which the damages are based did not constitute actual fraud, actual malice, willful misconduct or an intention wrong.
 - (c) If the Town has failed, after reasonable notice, to provide such required defense, all costs of defending the action, including reasonable counsel fees and expenses, together with costs of any appeal.
 - (2) In addition, in any case where the Town would be required to provide a defense under this chapter, except for the fact that such defense is provided for by insurance, the Town shall provide indemnification as aforesaid, but only to the extent not covered by insurance.

(3) Nothing in the section shall authorize the Town to pay for damages resulting from the commission of a crime

§ 2-22. Municipal Public Defender. [Added 2-24-1998 by Ord. No. 6-1998]

- **A.** Establishment. There is hereby established in the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey, the office of Municipal Public Defender pursuant to P.L. 1997, c. 256.**11**
- B. Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: INDIGENT DEFENDANT A person who is entitled to be represented by a Municipal Public Defender pursuant to P.L. 1997 c. 25612 and does not have the present financial ability to secure competent legal representation as determined by Subsection L herein.
 - MUNICIPAL COURT The Municipal Court of the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey.
 - MUNICIPAL PUBLIC DEFENDER A person as defined in Section 4 of P.L. 1997, c. 25613, appointed to represent indigent defendants in proceedings over which the Municipal Court has jurisdiction.
- C. Appointment. One Municipal Public Defender shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen.
- D. Qualifications. The Municipal Public Defender shall be an attorney at law of this state in good standing.
- E. Term. The Municipal Public Defender shall serve for a term of one year from the date of his appointment and may continue to serve in office pending reappointment or appointment of a successor. In addition to any other means provided by law for the removal from office of a public official, a Municipal Public Defender may be removed by the governing body of the municipality for good cause shown and after a public hearing and upon due notice and an opportunity to be heard. Failure to reappoint a Municipal Public Defender for a second or subsequent term does not constitute a removal from office in the meaning of this section.
- F. Compensation. The Municipal Public Defender shall receive an annual salary to be determined by the governing body, paid in equal monthly installments. Compensation of the Municipal Public Defender for services rendered pursuant to this section shall be in lieu of any and all other compensation by the municipality. The Municipal Public Defender shall also receive a fee, to be determined by the governing body, for interlocutory appeals in the Superior Court.
- G. Duties of the Municipal Public Defender. It shall be the duty of the Municipal Public Defender to represent, except in the case of temporary unavailability or conflict of interest, any defendant charged with an offense in Municipal Court who is an indigent municipal defendant entitled to representation pursuant to P.L. 1997, c. 256.14 The Municipal Public Defender shall be responsible for handling all phases of the defense, including but not limited to discovery, pretrial and post-trial hearings, motions, removals to federal district court and other collateral functions reasonably related to the defense. As used in this section, post-trial hearing shall not include de novo appeals in Superior Court. The Municipal Public Defender shall represent an indigent defendant charged in Municipal Court with a crime as specified in N.J.S.A. 2B: 12-18 or if, in the opinion of the Municipal Court, there is a likelihood that the defendant, if convicted of any other offense, will be subject to imprisonment or other consequence of magnitude.
- H. Private representation. The Municipal Public Defender may represent private clients in any municipality, including the Town of Dover, where he acts as a Municipal Public Defender, subject to the Rules of Court governing the conduct of lawyers, judges and court personnel.
- I. Services and facilities of representation. All necessary services and facilities of representation, including both expert and lay investigation and testimony as well as other preparations shall be provided in every case. The municipality shall be responsible for payment or services pursuant to this section. The factors of need and real value to a defendant may be weighed against the financial constraints of the municipality in determining the necessary services and facilities of representation. The final determination as to necessity for services required pursuant to this section shall be made by the Court. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to require the municipality to pay for expert and lay investigation or testimony for a period of one year after the effective date of P. L. 1997, c. 256. Vacancy in office. If there is a vacancy in the office of Municipal Public Defender, if the Municipal Public Defender is temporarily unavailable or if a finding of conflict of interest precludes the Municipal Public Defender from representing an indigent defendant, the Municipal Prosecutor may prosecute the offense if the Municipal Court appoints a qualified attorney to represent the indigent defendant. The rate of payment for such appointed attorney shall be \$100 per case. Payment to such attorney is to be made within 30 days of appointment. Once appointed, the attorney shall carry out all duties of Municipal Public Defender in connection with the case that is the subject of the appointment.
- J. Confidentiality. All communications between the indigent defendant and the Municipal Public Defender or any other attorney appointed to act as a Municipal Public Defender on a particular case, shall be fully protected by the attorney-client privilege to the same extent and degree as though counsel had been privately engaged. This shall not preclude the use by the Municipal Public Defender of privileged material for the preparation and disclosure of statistical, case study and other sociological data, provided that in any such use there shall be no disclosure of identity of or means for discovery of the identity of particular defendants.
- K. Eligibility.

- (1) Eligibility for the services of a Municipal Public Defender shall be determined by the Municipal Court on the basis of the need of the defendant, except as provided in Subsection L(4) below. Need shall be measured according to Section 14 of P.L. 1967, c. 43 (N.J.S.A. 2A:158A-14) and guidelines promulgated by the New Jersey Supreme Court.
- (2) In the event that a determination of eligibility cannot be made before the time when the first services are to be rendered or if an initial determination is found to be erroneous, the Municipal Court shall refer the defendant to the Municipal Public Defender provisionally; and, if subsequently it is determined that the defendant is ineligible, the Municipal Court shall inform the defendant, and the defendant shall be obliged to engage his own counsel and to reimburse the municipality for the costs of the services rendered to that time.
- (3) The Municipal Court shall make an investigation of the financial status of each defendant seeking representation pursuant to P.L. 1997, c. 256, and shall have the authority to require a defendant to execute and deliver written requests or authorizations required under applicable law to provide the Court with access to records of public or private sources, otherwise confidential, as may be of aid in evaluating eligibility. The Court is authorized to obtain information from any public record, office of the state or of any subdivision or agency thereof on request and without payment of fees ordinarily required by law.
- (4) Whenever a person entitled to representation by a Municipal Public Defender pursuant to this section is under the age of 18 years, the eligibility for services shall be determined on the basis of the financial circumstances of the individual and the financial circumstances of the individual's parents or legal guardian. The municipality shall be entitled to recover the costs of legal services from the parents or legal guardians as set forth below, and the Municipal Court shall have authority to require parents or legal guardians to execute and deliver the written requests for authorizations required under applicable law in order to provide the Court with access to records of public or private sources, otherwise confidential, as may be of aid to it in evaluating eligibility.
- (5) If the defendant has or reasonably expects to have means to meet some part, though not all, of the cost of the services rendered, the defendant shall be required to reimburse the municipality, either by a single payment or in installments in such amounts as he can reasonably be expected to pay, but no default or failure in making payment shall affect or reduce the rendering of services.

L. Lien of municipality.

- (1) The Town shall have a lien on any property to which the defendant shall have or acquire an interest in for an amount equal to the reasonable value of the services rendered to a defendant pursuant to P.L. 1997, c. 256, as calculated at the same rate as the office of the Public Defender bills clients at that time.
- (2) To effectuate such lien for the municipality, the Town Attorney shall file a notice setting forth services rendered to the defendant and the reasonable value thereof with the Clerk of the Superior Court. The filing of the notice with the Clerk of the Superior Court shall constitute a lien on property for a period of 10 years from the date of filing, unless discharged sooner, and, except for such time limitations, shall have the force and effect of a judgment. Within 10 days of the filing of the notice, the Town Attorney shall send by certified mail, or serve personally, a copy of the notice with a statement of the date of the filing to or upon the defendant at the defendant's last known address. If the Town Attorney shall fail to give notice, the lien is void.
- (3) The Town Attorney is authorized to compromise and settle any claims for services performed pursuant to this section whenever the financial circumstances of the person receiving the services are such that, in the judgment of the Town Attorney, the best interests of the state will be served by compromising settlement.
- (4) The Town Attorney, in the name of the municipality, may do all things necessary to collect any money due to the municipality by way of reimbursement for services rendered by a Municipal Defender pursuant to this section. The Town Attorney may enter into arrangements with any state or county agency to handle collections on a cost basis. The Town Attorney shall have all the remedies and proceedings available for collection which are available for or upon the recovery of a judgment and a civil action and shall also be permitted to collect counsel fees and costs from the defendant for such collection action so that the same are not borne by the municipality.
- M. Application fee; waiver. There is required of all persons applying for representation by the Municipal Public Defender or Court-approved counsel an application fee of not more than \$200, but only an amount necessary to pay the costs of the Municipal Public Defender's services. In accordance with guidelines promulgated by the Supreme Court, the Municipal Court may waive any required application fee, in whole or in part, or if the Court determines, in its discretion, upon a clear and convincing showing by the applicant, that the application fee represents an unreasonable burden on the person seeking representation. The Municipal Court may permit a person to pay the application fee over a specific period of time not to exceed four months.
- N. Dedicated fund. Funds collected pursuant to Subsection N of this section shall be deposited in a dedicated fund administered by the Chief Financial Officer of the Town. Such funds shall be used exclusively to meet the costs incurred in providing the services of a Municipal Public Defender, including, when required, expert

and lay investigation and testimony. In the event that the division of Local Government Services, during its annual review beginning in 1999 of the municipal budget, determines that the amount of money in a dedicated fund established pursuant to P.L. 1997, c. 256,18 exceeds by more than 25% the amount which the municipality expended during the prior year providing the services of the Municipal Public Defender, such amount in excess of the amount expended shall be forwarded to the Criminal Disposition and Review Collection Fund administered by the Victims of Crime Compensation Board.

§ 2-23. Department of Code Enforcement. [Added 4-27-2004 by Ord. No. 11-2004]

- A. Establishment. There is hereby established in the Town of Dover the Department of Code Enforcement.
- B. Personnel. The Department of Code Enforcement shall consist of a Chief Code Enforcement Officer and those additional Code Enforcement Officers as may be deemed appropriate and necessary by the Town Administration. The Code Enforcement Officers shall be under the direct supervision of the Chief Code Enforcement Officer, and the Chief Code Enforcement Officer shall be under the supervision of the Town Administrator.
- C. Duties. The Chief Code Enforcement Officer and Code Enforcement Officers shall enforce the property maintenance code, zoning code, solid waste disposal code and recycling code of the Town of Dover, as well as enforce the multiple dwelling laws, regulations and ordinances of the Town of Dover and State of New Jersey.

§ 2-24. License Inspector. [Added 4-28-2015 by Ord. No. 06-2015]

Within the office of the Town Clerk, there shall be a bureau of central licensing, which shall contain a License Inspector. Under the direction, supervision and final authority of the Town Clerk, the bureau shall administer and enforce the licensing ordinances of the Town with respect to the following matters and subjects:

- A. Newsstands:
- B. Canvassers and solicitors;
- C. Taxicabs and limousines;
- D. Vendors and peddlers;
- E. Auctioneers;
- F. Pawn shops;
- G. Junkyards;
- H. Sound trucks;
- I. Dance halls, pool and billiard parlors, bowling alleys and coin-operated amusements;
- J. Such additional and other licenses as may be provided by ordinance or statute except as this Code otherwise provides;
- K. Films or movie shoots;
- L. Dog licenses shall be issued by the bureau of central licensing under the supervision of the Chief License Inspector, but the control of the Dog Warden and the assistants and enforcement of all ordinances pertaining to dogs shall remain the responsibility of the Health Department;
- M. Autobuses. The functions of the administration and enforcement of all ordinances in connection with autobuses are the responsibility of the bureau of central licensing under the supervision of the Chief License Inspector;
- N. Florists;
- O. Garage sales;
- P. Towing/tow trucks;
- Q. Private open-air parking permits;
- R. Secondhand dealers;
- S. Sidewalk sales;
- T. Solicitation of contributions from motorists in roadways;
- U. Donation clothing bins;
- V. Theaters:
- W. Travelling shows and kiddy rides;
- X. Window display areas.

§ 2-25. Department of Economic Development and Community Affairs. [Added 2-9-2016 by Ord. No. 01-2016]

- A. Department established. There shall be a Department of Economic Development and Community Affairs that shall be under the authority of the Town Administrator as delegated by the governing body of the Town of Dover and shall provide such services to include but not be limited to community improvement, redevelopment, economic stimulus, community affairs, and cultural affairs.
- B. Qualifications.
 - (1) The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs is a municipal department head. Prior to his/her appointment, the Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs shall be qualified by education, training and at least five years of responsible experience for the duties of his/her office. The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs shall receive an annual salary

as set forth in the Employment Agreement and comformed by the salary ordinance, to be paid as all other salaries are paid.

- **C.** Duties of Director. The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs shall be under the direction of the Town Administrator as delegated by the governing body and performing such duties including but not limited to the following:
 - (1) Directing and taking complete charge of a community development program and any of its personnel; and
 - (2) Being responsible for the administration, planning and development procedures of community development programs and for promoting and administering a comprehensive community development service, which includes planning, organizing, monitoring and evaluating federal, state and county community- oriented programs; and
 - (3) Be responsible for the preparation, formulation and implementation of an overall economic development plan for the Town; and
 - (4) Formulate plans for attracting new business and industry into the Town; and
 - (5) Involve public officials and private citizens in defining development goals and determining project opportunities; and
 - (6) Implement programs developed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen designed to promote cultural services; and
 - (7) Maintain liaison with citizen programs interested in participating in programs and activities promulgated by the department; and
 - (8) Ascertain the cultural needs of the Town and implement programs to meet them; and Assume responsibility for the development of services and programs aimed at meeting the needs of the community; and
 - (9) All other duties that may be expected to be performed by a Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs as set out by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen or as assigned by the Town Administrator.
- D. Appointment of Director; term. The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen and shall serve at the pleasure of the governing body and until his successor has been appointed and qualified in accordance with all applicable law and regulations. The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs shall be an unclassified position and not subject to the laws, regulations or procedures of the Civil Service Act, N.J.S.A. 11A:1-1 et seq. The Director of Economic Development and Community Affairs is a high-level municipal title and is a subordinate officer as deemed necessary by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for the Town of Dover in compliance with N.J.S.A. 40A:62-6(d). The Director of Municipal Services shall receive such annual compensation as shall be provided in the Employment Agreement and confirmed by the Salary Ordinance.

§2-26 Town Engineer

The Mayor with the advice and consent of the Board of Aldermen shall, by ordinance, appoint a Town Engineer and fix his compensation on an annual salary as set forth in the Employment Contract and conform to the salary ordinance. The Town Engineer shall serve for a three (3) years term and until his successor has been appointed and qualified.

A. Duties:

The Town Engineer shall perform such duties as are prescribed by general law and ordinance and in addition shall:

- (1) Prepare or cause to be prepared plans, designs and specifications for public works and improvements undertaken by the Town.
- (2) Provide and maintain surveys, maps, plans, specifications, estimates and control records with respect to public works and facilities owned or operated by the town, or to be acquired or built.
- (3) Provide technical and engineering advice, estimates and review of plans and assistance to other town departments as needed.
- (4) Attend meetings of the Board of Aldermen, Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment as needed.
- (5) Report to the Town Administrator on a monthly basis as to the status of all duties he or she is undertaking on behalf of the town.
- B. All papers, documents, memoranda, reports and other materials relating to the administration of engineering duties of the Town Engineer shall be and remain the property of the town. Upon the termination of his services with the town, the Town Engineer shall forthwith surrender to any successor all such property.

§2-27 Repeal and severability

A. All ordinances, resolutions and regulations, or parts of ordinances, resolutions and regulations inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

B. If any section, paragraph, article, subdivision, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be judged invalid, such adjudication, shall apply only to the section, paragraph, article, subdivision, clause or provision so adjudged, and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective.

Alderman Visioli has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Picciallo passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

ORDINANCE NO. 16-2018 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER ESTABLISHING AN ELECTRIC AND/OR NATURAL GAS AGGREGATION PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the State of New Jersey has been engaged in a process to establish a competitive market place through deregulation and restructuring the electric utility market and/or natural gas market; and

WHEREAS, the establishment of a government aggregator and an energy aggregation program to purchase electric generation service and/or natural gas pursuant to N.J.S.A. 48:3-93.1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 14:4-6.1 et seq. will increase competition for the provision of electric power and/or natural gas to residential and non-residential users, thereby increasing the likelihood of lower electric rates and/or natural gas rates for these users without causing any interruption in service; and

WHEREAS, under the aggregation process the residential and non-residential ratepayers may likely receive a direct reduction in their electric and/or gas bills; and

WHEREAS, the realization of energy cost savings is in the interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents and non-residents of the Town of Dover ("Town"); and

WHEREAS, the Town hereby finds that it is in the best interests of residential and non-residential ratepayers for the Town to create the opportunity for them to enter into an aggregation agreement in order to seek substantial savings on electric and/or natural gas rates; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, duly assembled in public session, as follows:

- 1. The Town publicly declares its intent to become an aggregator of electric power on behalf of its residential users of electricity pursuant to the Government Energy Act of 2003, **N.J.S.A.** 48:3-91.3 to -98, and implementing regulations.
- 2. The Town will utilize approved vendors, Concord Engineering Group dba Concord Energy Services pursuant to the NJ E-PROCUREMENT Pilot program (P.L. 2001, c.30) under the NJ Department of Community Affairs. The Reverse Energy auction will seek bids from licensed and appropriate third party suppliers. If such winning bid is selected and agreement executed, individual residential consumers would retain the option not to participate and to choose any alternatives they desire.
- 3. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute any documents necessary to carry out the purpose of the Ordinance.
- 4. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.
- 5. If any portion of this ordinance shall be deemed invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall survive in full force and effect.
- 6. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption and publication in accordance with law.

Alderman O'Connor has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Visioli passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

ORDINANCE 17-2018

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 72, SALARIES AND COMPENSATION

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, Town of Dover, County of Morris, NJ as follows:

A. CHAPTER C. "Salaries and Compensation for Certain Employees" is hereby amended and supplemented by the following:

CHAPTER C. SALARIES & COMPENSATION FOR CERTAIN EMPLOYEES

- 1. Effective January 1, 2018 as indicated below, salaries, compensation or fees are hereby established for the following named officers, employees or positions in the Town of Dover at the rate of or within the salary ranges listed.
 - B. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies.
 - C. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication.

Job Title White Collar Union

Principal Cashier/Typing	\$ 50,000	\$ 70,000
Registrar of Vital Stat.	\$ 45,000	\$ 65,000
Deputy Court Administrator	\$ 45,000	\$ 85,000
Deputy Court Administrator BL	\$ 45,000	\$ 85,000
Account Clerk	\$ 45,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Account Clerk	\$ 45,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Assessing Clerk/Typing	\$ 45,000	\$ 70,000
Principal Account Clerk	\$ 45,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Clerk Typist	\$ 40,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Clerk Transcriber	\$ 44,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Police Record Clk/Typ	\$ 44,000	\$ 70,000
Tax Clerk Typing	\$ 40,000	\$ 70,000
Technical Assistant	\$ 44,000	\$ 70,000
Telephone Operator/Typ.	\$ 40,000	\$ 70,000
Cashier Typing	\$ 40,000	\$ 70,000
Clerk Typist	\$ 32,000	\$ 70,000
Violations Clerk	\$ 32,000	\$ 70,000
Sr. Account Clk Typ/PT	\$ 17.00	\$ 25.00
Library Asst/ Part time	\$ 14.00	\$ 21.00
Library Asst/Sr. Acct. Clerk Part Time	\$ 14.00	\$ 21.00
Clerk Typist - Part time	\$ 14.00	\$ 21.00
Police Communications Clerk	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Recreation Aide	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Recreation Leader	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Senior Citizen Program Aide	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Youth Worker	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000

Job Title Non Union

Town Clerk	\$ 65,000	\$ 130,000
Town Administrator	\$ 125,000	\$ 225,000
Deputy Town Administrator	\$ 75,000	\$ 135,000
Director of Municipal Services / Public Works	\$ 110,000	\$ 150,000
Public Safety Director	\$ 110,000	\$ 150,000
Public Works Superintendent	\$ 85,000	\$ 125,000
Water Superintendent	\$ 85,000	\$ 125,000
Supervisor Street	\$ 75,000	\$ 110,000
Supervisor Water	\$ 75,000	\$ 110,000

		* • • • • • • • •
Municipal Engineer	\$ 110,000	\$ 200,000
Recy Coor/Eng. Aide/Chief Code Enf. Off.	\$ 95,000	\$ 150,000
Code Enforcement Officer	\$ 42,000	\$ 80,000
License Inspector	\$ 55,000	\$ 95,000
Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer	\$ 75,000	\$ 150,000
Library Director	\$ 60,000	\$ 90,000
Municipal Court Admin.	\$ 70,000	\$ 95,000
Municipal Court Attendant PT	\$ 15.00/hr	\$ 35.00/hr
Tax Collector	\$ 50,000	\$ 95,000
Tax Assessor	\$ 25,000	\$ 65,000
Human Resources Manager	\$ 65,000	\$ 85,000
Librarian	\$ 45,000	\$ 70,000
Supv. Library Asst.	\$ 35,000	\$ 60,000
Sr. Library Asst.	\$ 30,000	\$ 55,000
Sanitation Inspector	\$ 20.00/hr	\$ 40.00/hr
•		
Confidential Aide	\$ 40,000	
Deputy Clerk	\$ 50,000	\$ 80,000
Secretary Board/Commission	\$ 40,000	\$ 85,000
Clerk Typist	\$ 35,000	\$ 60,000
Senior Clerk Typist	\$ 45,000	\$ 65,000
Director Emergency Management Coordinator	\$ 4,000	\$ 9,000
Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator	\$ 1,000	\$ 3,000
Construction Off/ Building SC Off/ Code Enf. Off	\$ 55,000	\$ 100,000
Code Enforcement Officer Trainee	\$ 36,000	\$ 55,000
Police Matron	\$ 16.00/hr	\$ 32.00/hr
School Crossing Guard PT	\$ 16.00/hr	\$ 25.00/hr
Special Police Officers PT	\$ 21.00/hr	\$ 35.00/hr
Clerk Typist PT	\$ 15.00/hr	\$ 40.00/hr.
Housing Inspector PT	\$ 13.00	\$ 25.00
Electric Sub-code Official PT	\$ 25.00	\$ 60.00
Fire Sub-code Official	\$ 25.00	\$ 60.00
	\$ 25.00	\$ 60.00
Building Sub-code Official		
Mayor	\$ 100.00	\$ 75,000
Aldermen	\$ 100.00	\$ 30,000
Asst. Tax Assessor	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Director Economic Dev. And Community Aff.	\$ 115,000	\$ 150,000
Analyst Trainee	\$ 40,000	\$ 85,000
Assessor Trainee	\$ 40,000	\$ 85,000
Assistant Personnel Technician	\$ 40,000	\$ 85,000
Planner Trainee	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Planning Aide	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Community Service Aide Bilingual Spanish	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Community Service Worker	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Community Service Worker Bilingual Spanish	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Employee Benefits Clerk	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Engineering Aide	\$ 40,000	\$ 85,000
Human Services Aide	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Human Services Aide Bilingual Spanish	\$ 55,000	\$ 85,000
Student Assistant	PT. \$10.00/hr.	\$ 25.00/hr.
Student Assistant Student Assistant Intern Program	PT. \$10.00/hr.	\$ 25.00/hr.
	\$ 32,000	\$ 70,000
Payroll Clerk		
Asst. Municipal Treasurer	\$ 65,000	\$ 85,000
Job Title Public Works Union		
Ruilding Maintananaa Warkar/Maintananaa Damairan	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Building Maintenance Worker/Maintenance Repairer	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Building Maintenance Worker/Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Building Maintenance Worker/Security Guard	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Building Service Worker	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Building Service Worker/Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Maintenance Repairer	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds/Maintenance Repairer	\$ 35,000	\$ 70,000
-		

Mechanical Engineer Trainee	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Mechanics Helper	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Mechanics Helper/Truck Driver	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Park Attendant	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Security Guard	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Security Guard Bilingual Spanish	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Tree Maintenance Worker 1	\$	35,000	\$	70,000
Senior Mechanic	\$	54,000	\$	80,000
Senior Public Works Rep	\$	54,000	\$	80,000
Senior Water Rep	\$	54,000		80,000
Mechanic		51,000		80,000
Equipment Operator		51,000		80,000
Truck Driver	\$			70,000
Supervisor/Foreman (Working)		60,000		90,000
Laborer		35,000		48,000
Bldg Maintenance Worker		35,000		48,000
Water Meter Reader/Rep	\$			60,000
Public Works Repairer		44,000		55,000
Water Repairer		50,000		70,000
Sr. Pkg. Enforcement Officer FT		43,000		50,000
Parking. Enforcement Officer FT		32,000		45,000
Bldg. Maintenance Worker PT		15.00		25.00
Motor Vehicle Operator		15.00		25.00
Parking Enforcement Officer PT		15.00		25.00
Tarking Emoreoment Officer 1 1	Ψ	13.00	Ψ	23.00
Job Title FMBA Union				
Fire Fighter	\$	36,000	\$	125,000
Fire Lieutenant	\$	88,000	\$	
Fire Captain	\$	98,000	\$	
The Captain	Ψ	76,000	Ψ	130,000
Job Title PBA Union				
Police Officer	\$	40,000	\$	140,000
Job Title SOA Union				
Police Sergeant		120,000	\$	
Police Lieutenant	\$	125,000	\$	
Police Captain	\$,	\$	170,000
Police - Deputy Chief	\$	125,000	\$	180,000

Alderman Visioli has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Picciallo passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: Alderwoman Blackman

RESOLUTIONS:

BILLS LIST RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover have examined all bills presented for payment; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there are sufficient funds in the account(s) to which respective bills have been charged.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover do hereby approve the bills as listed; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper officials are hereby authorized to sign the checks for payment of same.

CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$900.00		
CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$1,472,656.08		
GENERAL CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$70,385.16		
WATER UTILITY RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
WATER UTILITY ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$41,528.99		
WATER CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$4,898.89		
PARKING UTILITY RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
PARKING UTILITY ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$266.82		
PARKING CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
ANIMAL CONTROL TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
EVIDENCE TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
RECYCLING TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$2,776.00		
COUNTY FORFEITED ASSETS TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
FEDERAL FORFEITED ASSETS ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
TRUST/OTHER ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$32,063.17		
COAH TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		
TOTAL CLAIMS TO BE PAID	\$1,625,475.11		
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following claims have been paid prior to the Bill List Resolution in the following amounts:			
TRUST/OTHER ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$2,486.35		
CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$8,610.65		
GENERAL CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of:	\$0.00		

Alderman Picciallo has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman O'Connor passed by the following roll call vote.

\$590.24

\$11,687.24

\$1,637,162.35

WATER UTILITY OPERATING claims in the amount of:

TOTAL CLAIMS PAID

TOTAL BILL LIST RESOLUTION

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, MacDonald, O'Connor & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: Aldermen Blackman, Toth & Camacho

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Open Public Meeting Law, annual notice has been provided for all Mayor and Board of Aldermen meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover held their Public Meetings, and minutes of those meetings were transcribed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey for approval the minutes for the following meetings:

October 23, 2018 - Caucus & Regular

Alderman Visioli has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Picciallo by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd
Nays: None
Absent: Alderwoman Romaine
Abstained: Aldermen MacDonald & Toth

CHAPTER 159

WHEREAS, N.J.S. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or municipality when such item shall have been made by law and the amount thereof was not determined at the time of adoption of the budget, and

WHEREAS, said Director may also approve the insertion of any item of appropriation for equal amount,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Dover hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2018 in the sum of \$14,000.00; which item is now available as revenue from the NJ Division of Highway Traffic Safety — Pedestrian Safety Grant pursuant to the provisions of statute, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a like sum of \$14,000.00 be and the same is hereby appropriated under the caption of:

Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: NJ Division of Highway Traffic Safety Pedestrian Safety Grant

Alderman Picciallo has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman O'Connor passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

SALARY RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris, and State of New Jersey as follows:

- 1. That the annual, hourly salaries and wages as set forth hereunder be and hereby are established for the officials and listed employees of the Town of Dover at the respective sums shown following their names and or position designation following their name listed below.
- 2. This resolution directs the Treasurer of the Town of Dover to withhold such monies from individual salaries and wages so there is no advance payment of salaries and wages and annual sums may be adjusted through December 31, 2018.

NEW HIRES:

Anthony Riquelme Mechanic \$46,809 12/3/2018

Alderman Visioli has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Picciallo passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF TRUST FUNDS TO MORRIS HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF \$22,500.00 FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A SINGLE FAMILY HOME LOCATED AT 27 MONMOUTH AVENUE BLOCK 1214, LOT 2 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF COAH

WHEREAS, MHfH has requested a contribution for the construction in the amount of \$22,500.00 from the Affordable Housing Trust Fund to assist in the construction of the unit; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover has been advised by its planner that this unit, once constructed, would assist the Town in fulfilling its COAH obligations; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover wishes to provide such housing for low income persons and wishes to continue its relationship with MHfH; and

WHEREAS, these homes shall be built and certified under the New Jersey Energy Star Homes program.

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover now wishes to proceed with this agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Alderman of the Town of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey that the contribution shall be approved.

Alderman Camacho has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman Picciallo passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Navs: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER AUTHORIZING AN EMERGENCY APPROPRIATION FOR THE WARREN STREET STRUCTURE FIRE

WHEREAS, an emergency has arisen with respect to a 4 story structure fire on 3-7 N. Warren St. (debris removal, overtime, utility repairs, etc.) and no adequate provision was made in the 2018 budget for the aforesaid purpose, and N.J.S.A. 40A:4-46 provides for the creation of an emergency appropriation for the purpose above mentioned, and

WHEREAS, the total amount of the emergency appropriation created including the appropriation to be created by this resolution is \$250,000 and three (3) percent of the total operating appropriations in the budget for the year 2018 is \$661,048.00.

WHEREAS, the foregoing appropriation together with prior appropriations does not exceed three (3) percent of the total operating appropriations (including utility operation appropriations) in the budget for 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, County of Morris, State of New Jersey that in accordance with the N.J.S.A. 40A:4-48 that:

- 1. An emergency appropriation is hereby made for the N. Warren St structure fire in the amount of \$250,000.00.
- 2. That said emergency appropriation shall be provided in full in the 2019 budget, and is requested to be excluded from CAPS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-53.3c(1)
- 3. That two (2) certified copies of this resolution be filed with the Director of the Division of Local Government Services.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF DOVER AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF DOVER TO ACCEPT, ENTER INTO AND ADMINISTER ANY AND ALL FUNDS/PROGRAMS ASSOCIATED WITH THE COUNTY OF MORRIS ALLIANCE TO PREVENT ALCOHOLISM AND DRUG ABUSE ("MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE")

WHEREAS, the County of Morris and the Town of Dover wish to enter into an agreement for the grant administration of the Alliance to Prevent Alcoholism and Drug Abuse ("Municipal Alliance"); and

WHEREAS, municipalities in Morris County receive funding from Morris County for the Municipal Alliance to Prevent Alcoholism and Drug Abuse; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover receives and allocates funding on an annual basis in coordination with the County Alliance Coordinator; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Dover appointed a local Municipal Alliance coordinator, Hector Quinones, who is responsible on a fiscal year basis to administer the program in accordance with the municipal by laws, subject to availability, appropriation and certification of sufficient funds; now, therefore be it

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the appropriate Town officials are authorized to execute, enter into and administer any and all agreements and/or documentation pertaining to the Alliance to Prevent Alcoholism and Drug Abuse

Alderman Picciallo has moved the foregoing resolution be adopted and duly seconded by Alderman O'Connor passed by the following roll call vote.

Ayes: Aldermen Visioli, Picciallo, Blackman, MacDonald, Toth, O'Connor, Camacho & Mayor Dodd Nays: None Absent: Alderwoman Romaine Abstained: None

Mayor Dodd opened the meeting to the public.

Karol Ruiz—86 S. Morris Street, Dover—Ms. Ruiz spoke about the community's response to the fire. She also spoke about the response from that students in Town following the fire. She spoke about using words wisely and owning the words that we use.

Stacey Gregg—40 Sunrise Road, Rockaway Township—Ex. Action VP for National Organization of Women in NJ—Ms. Gregg addressed the Mayor regarding the incident that took place on November 4th.

Jake Kohn—11 Wilkeshire Boulevard, Randolph—Mr. Kohn addressed Alderwoman Blackman regarding the incident that took place on November 4th.

Kate Marchese —111 Oram Drive, Dover—Ms. Marchese addressed the Mayor regarding the incident that took place on November 4th.

Antonio Acosta—130 Madison Street—Mr. Acosta spoke about the response to the fire. He mentioned during the hardest times of crisis you are able to see someone's true colors.

Fabian Beltran—4 Shore Road, Lake Hopatcong—Mr. Beltan spoke about the fire that took place on Blackwell Street. He commended the Mayor on his response to the fire.

Enrique Robel—80B East Blackwell Street, Dover—Mr. Robel addressed Mr. Beltran and mentioned that he assisted the victims in the fire.

Noreen Staples—Brookside, NJ—Ms. Staples also spoke about the fire that took place on Blackwell Street. Ms. Staples addressed the Mayor regarding the incident that took place on November 4th.

Julia Giles—25 Church Street, Rockaway Borough—Ms Giles commended the Town on their response to the fire. She also addressed the Mayor regarding the November 4^{th} incident.

Richard Gonzalez—5 Cambridge Court, Budd Lake—Mr. Gonzalez addressed the Mayor regarding the incident that took place on November 4th. He questioned whether a police report was filed following the incident.

Frank Zanotti—224 Baker Street, Dover—Mr. Zanotti addressed the Mayor and Board of Aldermen and expressed his frustration regarding the events that are taking place.

Fernando Barrios—12 Christopher Street, Dover—Mr. Barrios mentioned that he worked for Mayor Dodd. He mentioned the November 4th incident.

Mayor Dodd made the motion to adjourn at 8:15 PM and Alderman MacDonald the motion and duly seconded and passed it by the following voice vote.

Respectfully submitted,

Tara Pettoni, Municipal Clerk